

Kemptville, both on the C.P.R. (Prescott & Ottawa div.), and 12 miles north of Cardinal, on the G.T.R., 10 miles east of Prescott, on the St. Lawrence River. It has 1 store, 1 grist mill and 1 cheese and butter factory.

IBERVILLE, an incorporated town in the co. of the same name, on the Richelieu River, and on the C.V.R., C.P.R. and Q.C.R., opposite the town of St. Johns. It contains 2 churches (Episcopal and Roman Catholic), 13 stores, 2 iron foundries, 7 hotels, 3 potteries, 1 grist mill and 2 agricultural implement factories, monumental works, carriage shop, 2 bank agencies, telegraph and express offices. Pop., 1,512.

IBERVILLE and ST. JOHN, a county in the south part of Quebec, bounded on the west by the Richelieu River, comprises an area of 224,104 acres. It is traversed by the Vermont Central Ry., C.P.R. and United Counties Ry. Capital, Ibergville. Pop. (1901), of the two counties, 19,536.

ICE LAKE, a post office in Algoma dist., Ont., near Gore Bay and 25 miles from Cutler on the C.P.R. "Soo" line, on the north channel of Lake Huron.

ICELANDIC RIVER, a post settlement on the west shore of Lake Winnipeg, opposite Big Island, and on the Icelandic River. The nearest station (40 miles south), is Winnipeg Beach, on a branch of the C.P.R., 51 miles north of Winnipeg city. It has 1 Lutheran church, 1 general store, 2 lumber mills and 1 butter factory. Pop., about 300.

IDA, a post village in Durham co., Ont., 6 miles from Millbrook, on the G.T.R., 13 miles south of Peterboro', and 2 miles from Cavanville, on the C.P.R. Pop., 75.

IDA, a post office in Queens co., N.B., 13 miles from Havelock, on the Elgin & Havelock RR.

IGNACE, a post village on Ignace Island, at the head of Lake Superior, south of Nipigon and north east of Port Arthur, in Thunder Bay dist., N. W. Ont., both of them stations on the C.P.R. In summer, it is reached by steamers from Collingwood via Sault Ste. Marie, on the north channel of Lake Huron.

IGNACE, ST., an island in Nipigon Bay, on the north shore of Lake Superior, north-east of Port Arthur.

ILDERTON, a post village in Middlesex co., Ont., on London, Huron & Bruce div. G.T.R., 4 miles from Arva and 12 miles from London, the nearest banking point. It contains 1 saw mill, 2 stores, 2 hotels, 1 branch bank and 1 telegraph office and 3 churches. Pop., 290.

ILFRACOMBE, a post settlement in Muskoka dist., Ont., 8 miles from Novar, on the Toronto & North Bay div. of the G.T.R., between Huntsville & Scotia Jet. It contains 1 church and 1 store. Pop. 55.

ILLECILLEWAET, a post village in Kootenay dist., B.C., on the Illecillewaet River, and a station on the main line of the C.P.R., 15 miles west of Glacier and 28 miles east of Revelstoke. It has 1 store and hotel. Pop., 50.

IMLAH, a post office in Kings and Albert co., N.B., 2 miles from Bellisle station on the New Brunswick Coal & Railway Co's. line.

INCHBY, a post village in Queens co., N.B., on the St. John River, 16 miles from Welsford, on the St. John and Vanceboro' branch of C.P.R. It contains 3 churches (Methodist,

Free Methodist and Baptist), 3 stores, 1 gasoline mill, 1 cheese factory, and temperance hall. Pop., about 400.

INDEPENDENCE, a post office in Edmonton dist., Prov of Alberta, 18 miles from Morinville on the Can. Northern Ry.

INDIANA, Haldimand co., Ont. See Deane.

INDIAN ARM, a fishing settlement and harbor in the dist. of Bonavista, Nfld., 63 miles from Catalina.

INDIAN BAY, a small fishing settlement and bay in the dist. of Bonavista, Nfld., 15 miles from Greenspond. Pop. (1901), 40.

INDIAN BROOK, a post village in Victoria co., N.S., on the Indian Brook, near the Atlantic in Cape Breton. It is 30 miles overland from North Sydney Station, on the inter-colonial RR. It has 1 church (Protestant), 2 stores, 1 hotel, 1 saw mill and telegraph office. Pop., about 100.

INDIAN BROOK RIVER, a small river in Victoria co., N.B.

INDIAN COVE, a settlement in the dist. of Fortune Bay, Nfld. Pop. (1901), 14.

INDIAN COVE, a settlement in the dist. of Twillingate, Nfld. Pop. (1901), 34.

INDIAN FORD, a post office in Macdonald co., Man., 7½ miles from Kathwyl, on the Souris branch of the C.P.R., 19 miles from Cypress River, 97 miles west of Winnipeg.

INDIAN GRAVE LAKE, a small lake in Berthier co., Que., near the head waters of the Matawan.

INDIAN HARBOUR, a post office in Halifax co., N.S., 31 miles from Halifax.

INDIAN HARBOR, a settlement in the dist. of Placentia and St. Mary's Nfld., on the Labrador Steamship Line, 729 miles north of St. John's. Pop., (1901), 163.

INDIAN HARBOR LAKE, a post settlement in Guysboro co., N.S., 52 miles from Antigonish, one of a series of five lakes, in the county, which drain their waters into the Atlantic at Port Hillford. It has 1 Episcopal church and 1 general store.

INDIAN HEAD, a post settlement in the Prov. of Saskatchewan (formerly Assa. E., N.W.T.), a station on the main line of the C.P.R., 43 miles east of Regina, and 10 miles east of Qu'Appelle. It has 4 churches (R.C., Epis., Pres. and Meth.), 27 stores, 4 hotels, 1 flour mill, 1 sash and door factory, 1 machine shop, 3 chartered banks, (Union, Hamilton and Montreal), and 2 printing and newspaper offices ("Vidette" and "Prairie Witness"), besides telegraph and express offices. The Dominion Experimental Farm is stationed here. The town is lighted by electric light. Pop., 2,000.

INDIAN HOUSE LAKE, situate in Ungava dist., N.E.T., south of Ungava Bay, and near the Labrador inland border. Area, 196,000 acres.

INDIAN ISLAND, a post village in Charlotte co., N.B., on an island in Passamaquoddy Bay, and 14 miles from St. Andrews. It contains 1 store. Pop., 50.

INDIAN ISLAND, a settlement in the dist. of Fogo, Nfld. Pop. (1901), 326.

INDIAN LAKE, a pretty sheet of water on the Cataragui River, in Leeds co., Ont.; it forms part of the Rideau Canal navigation.

INDIAN LAKE, a small lake in Halifax co., N.S., has its outlet in a small stream running south into the Atlantic Ocean.

INDIAN LAKE, a pretty sheet of water in Sunbury co., N.B.

INDIAN LORETTE, a post village and parish in Quebec co., Que., on the River St. Charles, and a station on the Que. & Lake St. John RR., 8 miles north-west of Quebec city. Here are the falls of Lorette, which attract the tourist, who also comes to the village to purchase snowshoes, moccasins and other Indian curios from the natives of the Indian tribe located here and have a church of their own. It has 2 R.C. churches, 10 stores, 6 temperance hotels, a number of mills and factories, 1 theatre, 2 money exchange offices, and 1 printing and newspaper office, besides express and telegraph offices and electric light plant. Pop. of parish, 3,900.

INDIAN MOUNTAIN, a post settlement in Westmoreland co., N.B., on North River, 3½ miles from Berry's Mills, on the Moncton & Riviere du Loup branch of I.C.R. It has a Reformed Baptist church. Pop., 200.

INDIAN POINT, a settlement in the dist. of Twillingate, Nfld. Pop. (1901), 26.

INDIAN POINT, a post office in Lunenburg co., N.S., 4 miles from Mahone Bay, on the Halifax & South Western Ry.

INDIAN POND, a settlement in the dist. of Harbor Main, Nfld. Pop. (1901), 77.

INDIAN RIVER, a post village in Prince co., P.E.I., 4 miles from Kensington, a station on the Prince Edward Island Ry., and nearest market town. It contains 1 Roman Catholic church, with seating capacity of 800, and a Baptist church, 2 stores, 1 chopping mill, grain elevator, and telegraph and express offices. It is situated on the north shore of Richmond Bay, celebrated for its oysters.

INDIAN RIVER, a village in Peterborough co., Ontario, on the main line C.P.R. (Montreal to Detroit), 10 miles from Peterborough. Pop., 100.

INDIAN RIVER, a considerable stream in Yukon Territory, that falls into the Yukon River south of Dawson city.

INDIAN RIVER, a winding stream in Muskoka dist., Ont., forming the water connection between Lakes Muskoka and Rosseau. It is the route taken by the stamers plying from Muskoka Wharf northward to the head of Lakes Rosseau and Joseph. Port Carling is situated on the river, near the lower end of Lake Rosseau.

INDIAN RIVER, a river of Lanark co. Ont. It abounds with all kinds of small fish and, in season, with duck.

INDIAN ROAD, a post settlement in Hants co., N.S., 7 miles from Shubenacadie, on the I.C.R. Pop., 200.

INDIAN SPRINGS, a post office in Macdonald co., Man., and a station on the Canadian Northern RR. (Miami & Greenway div.), 13 miles west of Somerset and 11 miles east of Greenway.

INDIAN TICKLE, a post settlement in the district of Twillingate, Nfld., 554 miles from St. John's.

INDIANTOWN, a station on a branch of the I.C.R. in Northumberland co., N.B., 17 miles from Newcastle. The post office is known as Renous Bridge.

INDIANTOWN, St. John co., N.B. See St. John.

INGA, a post settlement in the Prov. of Alberta, 6 miles from Oliver, a station on

the Can. Northern RR.; or Edmonton, a station on the Calgary & Edmonton branch of the C.P.R. (Strathcona) on the Canadian Northern Ry., 192 miles north of Calgary. It has 1 general store, school and blacksmith shop. Pop. under 50.

INGALL LAKE, in the Temagami region, Nipissing dist., N. Ont., lying to the west of Rabbit Creek station, on the Temiskaming & No. Ontario RR.

INGERSOLL, an incorporated town in Oxford co., Ont., on the River Thames and on the G.T.R., 19 miles north north-east of London. It contains churches of 6 denominations, 3 branch banks, several insurance agencies, 2 telegraph and express agencies, 35 stores, 8 hotels, 4 chartered banks, 1 private bank, 3 printing offices issuing weekly newspapers, and manufactories of iron castings, machinery, woollens, wooden-ware, cheese, etc., also saw and grist mills. Ingersoll has a large export trade in lumber, grain and country produce. Pop., 4,573.

INGERSOLL'S LAKES, several small lakes in the township of Wilmot, Guysborough co., N.S., which have their outlet in Tor Bay.

INGLE, a post office in Lennox and Addington co., Ont., on the Tonawanda Creek, 2 miles from Marlbank, on the Bay of Quinte Ry. It has 1 Methodist church, and 1 store. The place was early settled by U. E. Loyalists. Pop., of immediate district about 100.

INGLESIDE, a post settlement in Macdonald co., Man., 5 miles from Willow Range, on the C.N.R. It is an agricultural district.

INGLESIDE, a station on the C.P.R., in Kings co., N.B., 12 miles from St. John.

INGLETON, a post office in Strathcona dist., Prov. of Alberta, 40 miles from Stettler on the C.P.R. (Lacombe branch).

INGLEWOOD, a settlement in the dist. of Trinity, Nfld. Pop. (1901), 13.

INGLEWOOD, a post office in Peel co., Ont., and a station on the G.T.R. and C.P.R. It has 1 branch bank.

INGLIS FALLS, a post office in Grey co., Ont., ½ mile from Ashley (Rockford Station), on the C.P.R., 7 miles from Owen Sound.

INGLISHVILLE, a post village in Annapolis co., N.S., 2½ miles from Lawrenceton, on the Dominion Atlantic Ry., near Middleton. It contains a Baptist and a Methodist church. Pop., about 200.

INGOLDSBY, a post office in Haliburton co., Ont., 2 miles from Dysart, a station on the G. T. R. (Haliburton and Lindsay branch), 6 miles from Haliburton.

INGOLF, a post settlement and station on the C.P.R., in Rainy River dist., N.W. Ontario, close to the Manitoba boundary, 29 miles west of Keewatin.

INGOMAR, a post village in Shelburne co., N.S., at Black Point, near Port Clyde. Besides the post office, there is 1 Methodist church. Pop., 150.

INGONISH, a post settlement in Victoria co., N.S., 35 miles from North Sydney, on C.B. branch of I.C.R. It contains 3 churches, (Methodist, Roman Catholic and Union), 10 stores, 3 hotels, 6 lobster canneries and telegraph service. A steamer calls every fortnight. It is a fishing community, and beautiful summer resort; excellent bathing, driving, and cycling. Pop., 1,400.

INGONISH CENTRE, a post office in Victoria co., Cape Breton Island, N.S., 60 miles from North Sydney.

INGONISH FERRY, a post office in Victoria co. (Cape Breton Island), N.S., near South Bay, at the mouth of the Ingonish River, in the Gulf of St. Lawrence. Sydney, on the I.C.R., is the nearest station.

INGONISH LAKE, a lake of Victoria co. (Cape Breton Island), N.S.

INGRAM DOCKS, a settlement in Halifax co., N.S.,  $\frac{1}{2}$  mile from Ingram Port, a station on the Halifax & South Western Ry., 28 miles from Halifax.

INGRAM PORT, a post village in Halifax co., N.S., on the Ingram River, and a station on the Halifax & South Western Ry., 28 miles from Halifax. It contains 3 churches (2 Baptist and 1 Anglican), 2 stores, 1 hotel, 1 lumber mill. A considerable amount of fishing and lumbering is carried on here. The river is navigable all through the year. Pop., 600.

INGRAM'S, a salmon river in Halifax co., N.S., 20 miles in length, empties into the head of Margaret's Bay.

INHOLMES, a post settlement in Parry Sound district, Ont., 13 miles from Seguin Falls, on the Ottawa & Parry Sound div. of the G.T.R. Pop., 50.

INISTINGE, a post settlement in Grey co., Ont., 2 miles from Proton Station on the C.P.R.

INKERMAN, a post village in Dundas co., Ont., on the C.P.R., 96 miles west of Montreal. The south branch of the Nation River runs through the village, spanned by a new handsome bridge. It contains 2 Methodist churches, 3 stores, four daily mails and telegraph office. Pop., 300.

INKERMAN, a post office in Gloucester co., N.B., on the Gulf Shore RR.

INKSTER, a post office in Selkirk co., Man., via Winnipeg.

INLET, a post office in Labelle co., Que., 21 miles from Thurso, on the C.P.R. (north shore line Ottawa & Montreal branch), 30 miles east of Ottawa.

INLET BADDECK, a post office in Victoria co., Cape Breton Island, N.S., situate on the north side of St. Patrick's channel, Bras d'Or Lake, 4 miles from Baddeck and 1 mile from Baddeck River. The nearest station (13 miles distant) is Iona, on the I.C.R., west of Grand Narrows, and 16 miles east of Orangedale.

INNERKIP, a post village in Oxford co., Ont., on the C.P.R. and on the Thames River. It contains 3 churches (Methodist, Presbyterian and English 2 stores, 1 hotel, 1 flour mill, 1 cheese factory (3 miles away) 1 branch bank, telegraph and express offices and extensive lime manufactories. Pop. 400.

INNISFAIL, a post village in Alberta Province, a station on the Calgary & Edmonton branch of the C.P.R. It contains 3 churches (English, Presbyterian and Methodist), 14 stores, 3 hotels, 2 branch banks, flour and saw mills and telegraph and express offices. Pop., 500.

INNISFIL, a settlement in Simcoe co., Ont., 3 miles from Craigvale, on the Toronto & North Bay division G.T.R. Pop., 150.

INNISFRAE, a settlement and station in Alberta on the Canadian Northern RR. (Edmonton div.), 31 miles west of Vermilion and 26 miles east of Vegreville. It has 1 branch bank.

INNISVILLE, a post office in Lanark co., Ont., 9 miles from Carleton Place on the C.P.R.

INSINGER, a small settlement in Assa.

dist., Prov. of Sask., 3 miles from the White Sand River, and a station on the C.P.R. (Yorkton & Sheho branch), 8 miles from Sheho. Pop., under 10.

INTERVALE, a prosperous post settlement in Westmoreland co., N.B., very prettily situated on the North River, and on the Elgin & Havelock Ry., 3 miles from Petitcodiac. It contains 1 school and grist mill. Pop., 74.

INVERARY, a post village in Frontenac co., Ont., 12 miles from Kingston, on the G.T.R. and Kingston & Pembroke Ry. It contains 2 churches (Methodist and Hornerite), 1 store, 1 hotel and 1 carriage factory. Pop., 125.

INVERHAUGH, a post settlement in Wellington co., Ont., on the Grand River,  $4\frac{1}{2}$  miles from Elora, on G.T.R., and 15 miles from Guelph. It contains 1 Methodist church and blacksmith shop. Pop., 26.

INVERHURON, a post village in Bruce co., Ont., on Lake Huron, 23 miles from Southampton and 9 miles from Kincardine, on the G.T.R. It contains 1 saw mill and 1 store. Pop. 75.

INVERMAY, a post office in Bruce co., Ont., and a station on the G.T.R. (Owen Sound div.)

INVERMAY, a post settlement and station on the Can. Northern div. of the C.P.R., in the Prov. of Saskatchewan (formerly Assa. E., N.W.T.). It is situated 56 miles northwest of Kamsack, and 51 miles south-east of Quill Lake. It has several stores.

INVERNESS, a salmon fishing station in Cassiar dist., B.C., at the mouth of the Skeena River, 10 miles from Prince Rupert, 500 miles from Nanaimo and 511 miles from Victoria. It contains Episcopal and Methodist churches, 1 store, 1 cannery, 1 school and a post office. The inhabitants are chiefly Indians, Chinese and Japanese, employed in the fisheries and canning trade. Pop., about 450.

INVERNESS, a county of Nova Scotia, occupying the W.N.W. portion of the island of Cape Breton. Area, 901,600 acres. There is excellent land in the county, and agriculture is the general occupation of the people, who are also largely engaged in the fisheries. Coal and petroleum are obtained in Inverness. Capital, Port Hood. It is served, in part, by the I.C.R. and by the Inverness & Richmond RR. lines. Pop. (1891), 25,799; (1901), 24,353.

INVERNESS, a post village, the chef-lieu of Megantic co., Que., 9 miles from St. Julie, on the G.T.R. It contains a registry office and court house, 3 churches (Roman Catholic, Presbyterian, and Methodist), 6 stores, 2 hotels, 1 branch bank, and is in telephonic connection with the St. Julie Station, Athabaska, and nearly all parts of the country. Pop. 300.

INVERNESS, an incorporated and rapidly-growing town in Inverness co., Cape Breton Island, N.S., situated on the Big River, and on the Inverness & Richmond Ry. It contains Presbyterian and Roman Catholic halls, Salvation Army barracks, 25 stores and other shops, 3 hotels, 1 saw mill, agency of Union Bank of Halifax, 1 printing office issuing weekly newspaper, telegraph and express offices. It is an important centre for the coal trade, and also contains valuable deposits of free-stone and gypsum, limestone and clay for brick and pottery manufacture. Fishing is also carried on to a considerable extent. The scenery is picturesque and varied, making the place a desirable summer resort. A regular line of

steamers calls here during the navigable season. It is the warehousing port of customs. Pop., 2,500.

INVERNESS, a post village in Prince co., P.E.I.,  $\frac{2}{3}$  miles from Portage, on the P.E.I. Ry.

INVERNESS ASYLUM, a post office in Inverness co. (Cape Breton Island), N.S., near Mabou, on the Inverness & Richmond RR.

INVERNESS MILLS, a settlement near Inverness, in Megantic co., Que., on Mill brook, 12 miles from Ste. Julie Station, on the G.T.R., between Lyster and Plessisville. It has 3 churches (R. C., Meth. and Pres.), with lumber, grist and woollen mills (2 miles distant), telegraph at Inverness, and banks (agencies of the Quebec and Eastern Townships banks) at Thetford Mines. Pop., 242.

INWOOD, a post village in Lambton co., Ont., on the St. Clair branch of the Michigan Central Ry., 41 miles from St. Thomas and 7 miles from Alvinston. It contains 2 churches, 5 stores, 1 hotel, and saw and grist mills, private bank, 2 blacksmith shops and 2 grain elevators. Pop. 400.

IONA, a post village in Elgin co., Ont.,  $\frac{1}{4}$  miles from Iona Station, on the Michigan Central Ry. It contains 3 Methodist churches, 1 store and telegraph office. It is a farming district. Pop., 250.

IONA, a post office in Victoria co. (Cape Breton Island) N.S., on Bras d'Or Lake, and a station on the I.C.R., near Grand Narrows.

IONA (MONTAGUE CROSS ROADS), a post village in Queens co., P.E.I., 22 miles south-east of Charlottetown,  $\frac{1}{2}$  mile from Fodkka, on the Murray Harbor div. of the P. E. Island RR. It contains a Roman Catholic church, 1 hotel, 1 store and a blacksmith shop. Pop. about 150.

IONA STATION, a post settlement in Elgin co., Ont., and station on the Père Marquette & Michigan Central Rys., 6 miles from Lake Erie. It contains a Baptist church, 1 store, 1 hotel, public hall, blacksmith shop, telegraph and express offices. Pop., 75.

IOWALTA, a post settlement in Alberta Province, 8 miles from Morningside, on the Edmonton section of C.P.R. It contains 1 general store and 1 saw and planing mill.

IRELAND BIGHT, a settlement in the dist. of St. Barbe, Nfld. Pop. (1901), 19.

IRELAND'S EYE, a small island in the dist. of Trinity, Nfld., 11 miles from Trinity and 12 miles from Clarendville, on the Reid-Nfld. Ry. It is settled by fishermen. Mail bi-weekly. It contains an Anglican church, 2 stores and 2 cod liver oil refineries. Pop., (1901), 141.

IRENA, a post settlement in Dundas co., Ont., 4 miles from Iroquois, on the G.T.R. It contains 2 stores, 1 cheese factory, and is a farming community. Pop., 50.

IRETON, a post settlement in Yarmouth co., N.S., on Lake George, 5 miles from Ohio on the Dominion Atlantic Ry. It contains a Baptist church and lumber mill. There are a number of islands around this place.

IRIS, a post settlement in Queens co., P.E.I., on the Murray Harbor branch of the Prince Edward Island Ry. It contains Presbyterian and Baptist churches, 1 general store and 1 board and shingle mill.

IRISH COVE, a post village in Cape Breton co., N.S., on Bras d'Or Lake, 16 miles from Grand Narrows. It contains 1 Roman Catholic church, 3 stores, 3 mills, saw and shingle

mill, 1 carriage factory, 1 hotel, and a telegraph office. There is a mineral spring about a mile away. Pop., 150.

IRISH LAKE, a post village in Grey co., Ont., about 5 miles from Markdale, a station on the C.P.R. (Owen Sound branch), 6 miles north of Flesherton. Farming is the occupation of the region. Besides the post office there is a good school. Pop., 100.

IRISH LAKE, a small lake in Leeds co., Ont.

IRISHTOWN, a post office in Westmoreland co., N.B., and a station on the Moncton & Buc-touche RR., 17 miles from Moncton.

IRISHTOWN, a station on the Atlantic, Quebec and Western Ry., in Bonaventure co., Que., 58 miles from Metapedia and 40 miles from New Carlisle.

IRISH VALE, a post settlement in Cape Breton, N.S., situated on the south side of Bras d'Or Lake, 32 miles from Sydney, on the I.C.R. and S. & L. Ry. It contains a Roman Catholic church and a store. Pop., 105.

IRON BOUND COVE, a post office in Sunbury and Queens co., N.B., and a station on the New Brunswick Coal & Railway Co's. line, 8 miles from Minto.

IRON BRIDGE, a post settlement on the Mississauga River, in Algoma dist., Ont., 7 miles from Dean Lake, on the Soo branch of C.P.R. It contains 2 hotels, 2 stores, 1 Methodist church, 1 saw mill, blacksmith and wagon shops. Pop. 40.

IRONDALE, a post settlement in Halliburton co., Ont., on south branch of Burnt River, and a station on the Irondale, Bancroft & Ottawa Ry. It contains 1 English church, 1 store and telephone and express offices. Pop., 40.

IRON HILL, a post village in Brome co., Que., 5 miles from West Shefford and  $\frac{1}{2}$  miles from Sweetsburg. It is a good summer resort in a beautiful hilly country, having daily mails from Montreal, and telephone connection throughout the Eastern townships. It contains 2 churches (English and Union), 1 store, saw and planing mill, carriage and butter factories and a school founded by Sir William Macdonald. Pop. 300.

IRON MINES, a post settlement in Inverness co. (Cape Breton Island), N.S., 4 miles from Orangedale Station, on the I.C.R., with port on Iron Mine Harbor. It has 1 Presbyterian church, 3 stores, grist and saw mills and blacksmith shop. Pop., 100.

IRON ORE, a post office in Pictou co., N.S., 3 miles from Sunny Brae, on the Nova Scotia & Steel Co.'s Ry. Pop. 35.

IRON ROCK, a post village in Pictou co., N. S., 11 miles from Ferrona Jct., on the N.S. Steel & Coal Co. RR. It contains 1 Presbyterian church, 1 school house and 1 saw mill. Pop. 100.

IRONSIDE, a post village in Wright co., Que., on the Gatineau River, and on the Maniwaki branch of the C.P.R., 6 miles from Ottawa. It has valuable iron mines. It contains 4 stores, 3 hotels, and 1 telegraph office. There are also large quantities of phosphate and mica mined in the neighborhood. Pop., 300.

IROUOIS, a small river running into the Madawaska, in Victoria co., N.B.

IROUOIS, or MATILDA, an incorporated town in Dundas co., Ont., on the St. Lawrence River and a station on the G.T.R., 14 miles north north-east of Prescott, and 99 miles west of Montreal. It contains 4 churches, telegraph

and telephone offices, 1 foundry, 22 stores, 3 hotels, lumber, flour and oat mills, furniture, sash and door factories, 1 bank (molsons) and does a large trade in cheese, butter, eggs, hay and grain. Pop. (1901), 1,097.

**IROUOIS CLUB**, a station on the Quebec and Lake St. John Ry. in Quebec co., Que., 91 miles north of Quebec city.

**IROUOIS FALLS**, on Vermillion River, Que., a tributary of the St. Maurice. They are 40 feet high, and situated 6 miles above the mouth of the river.

**IRVINE**, a small river of Wellington co., Ont., noted for its beautiful scenery. It empties into the Grand River at Elora.

**IRVINE**, a post office in Megantic co., Que., 13 miles from Ste. Julie, a station on the G. T. R.

**IRVINE**, a settlement and station on the Reid-Nfld. Ry., in St. John dist., Nfld., 10 miles from St. Johns. It contains an hotel.

**IRVINE**, a post village in Assa. dist., Prov. of Sask., on the C.P.R. It contains 3 stores, 1 hotel, and a general hospital, telegraph and express offices. There is a quantity of coal and natural gas in the vicinity. Pop., 250.

**IRVINE'S LANDING**, a post office in Comox-Atlán dist., B.C., reached by weekly steamer from Vancouver for Port Neville.

**IRVING SETTLEMENT**, a post office in Albert co., N.B., 4 miles from Hillsborough, on the Salisbury & Harvey RR.

**ISAAC'S HARBOR**, a thriving post village in Guysboro co., N.S., on the harbor of that name, one of the finest in Nova Scotia, 45 miles from Antigonish. It is noted as one of the richest gold districts of the Province, and contains 2 churches (Baptist and Presbyterian), 9 stores, 1 hotel, 1 quartz mill, sash and door factory, P.O. savings bank. The harbor is practically ice free, and offers no impediment to navigation at any time. Pop., 500.

**ISAFOLD**, a fishing and lumbering settlement in Selkirk co., Man., 4 miles from the mouth of the Icelandic River, on the west shore of Lake Winnipeg. The nearest station is Gimli (40 miles southward), on the C.P.R., 80 miles north of Winnipeg City. At Isafold there is 1 saw mill which cuts one million feet of lumber per year, and ships it by barge in summer on Lake Winnipeg to Selkirk, on the Red River.

**ISBESTER**, a post settlement in Algoma dist., Ont., and a station on the C.P.R. It has a general store, lumber, lath and shingle mills.

**ISHERWOOD**, a post settlement in Rainy River dist., Ont., on Rainy River, 7 miles from Ft. Frances, on the C.N.R. It contains 1 United Presbyterian and Methodist church, 1 store and 1 woollen mill. Pop., 100.

**ISLAND**, a lake in Pontiac co., Que.

**ISLAND BROOK**, a post village in Compton co., Que., 8 miles from Cookshire Station, on the C.P.R. It contains 4 churches, 2 stores and temperance hall. Pop., 400.

**ISLAND COVE**, a small fishing settlement in the dist. of Trinity, Nfld., 11 miles from Heart's Content. Mail tri-weekly. Pop. (1901), 104.

**ISLAND EAST RIVER**, a post settlement in Pictou co., N.S., 3 miles from Feronia Jct., on the I.C.R. It contains 2 churches (Presbyterian and Methodist), 1 hotel, grist and saw mills, 1 woollen factory. Pop., 100.

**ISLAND HARBOR**, a settlement in the dist. of Pogo, Nfld. Pop. (1901), 94.

**ISLAND LAKE**, in Algonquin National Park.

Nipissing dist., Ont., north east of Doe and Canoe Lakes.

**ISLAND LAKE**, a post office in Strathcona dist., Province of Alberta, near Saskatoon on the C.P.R. (Prince Albert branch).

**ISLAND LAKE**, situate in Keewatin dist., N.W.T., to the north-east of the Prov. of Manitoba. Area, 352,800 acres.

**ISLAND LAKE**, a small lake on the Magnewan River, Parry Sound dist., Ont., about 15 miles from its mouth in the Georgian Bay. It contains more than twenty islands.

**ISLAND RIVER**, a post office in Gloucester co., N.B., near Shippegan, on the Caraque RR.

**ISLANDS, BAY OF**, a large bay formed by the Gulf of St. Lawrence, on the east coast of Newfoundland, north of St. George's Bay. Lat. 49° 20' N., lon. 58° 15' W. It receives on the south-east the Humber, and encloses a great number of small islands.

**ISLA WATER**, a small stream running into the Etchemin, in Dorchester co., Que.

**ISLAY**, a post office in Victoria co., Ont., 8 miles from Cambray on the G.T.R., 9 miles from Lorneville Jct.

**ISLAY**, a station on the Can. Northern Ry. (Edmonton line), in the Prov. of Alberta, 25 miles west of Lloydminster, 144 miles east of Edmonton.

**ISLE A LA CROIX**, situate in Athabasca dist., Province of Alberta, one of the sources of the Churchill River. Area, 120,000 acres.

**ISLE A LA CROSSE LAKE**, in Athabasca dist., N.W.T., 60 miles in length from north to south, receives the waters of the Beaver River, and gives origin to the Churchill. On its west side is Fort La Crosse, lat. 55° 28' N., lon. 108° W.

**ISLE AU CARROT**, an island in the St. Lawrence, north of Crane Island, below Quebec. It is about 1½ miles long.

**ISLE AU CHAT**, an island in the mouth of Lake St. Francis, Que., an expansion of the River St. Lawrence, off the south-west angle of Grande Isle, facing Huntingford co., Que.

**ISLE AU HERON**, an island in the Lachine Rapids, a little below Caughnawaga (La Prairie co.), Que.

**ISLE AU RAISIN**, an island at the entrance of Lake St. Peter, Que., between La Pierre and Dumoine Islands, on the south side of the south channel of the St. Lawrence.

**ISLE AUX COUDRES**, a post office in Charlevoix co., Que., 9 miles from Baie St. Paul, a port of call of the Reid-Nfld. Nav. Co.'s Saguenay line.

**ISLE AUX GRUES**, a post village in Montmagny co., Que., on the St. Lawrence, 8 miles from Montmagny Station, on the I.C.R. It contains a Roman Catholic church, 5 stores, 2 cheese factories. Pop., 453.

**ISLE-AUX-MOÛTS**, a fishing settlement in Burgeo and La Poile dist., Nfld., 6 miles from Channel. Pop. (1901), 244.

**ISLE-AUX-NOIX**, a village in St. John co., Que., on the Richelieu River, 2 miles from Stottsville Station, on the G.T.R., 12 miles from St. Johns. It has 1 Roman Catholic church, 2 stores, 2 hotels and 1 picture linen factory, with express and telegraph office at Stottsville. The place is historically noted in the French and English wars preceding the Conquest. Pop., 600.

**ISLE-AUX-ŒUFS (EGG ISLAND)**, a fishing settlement in Saguenay co., Que., on the St. Lawrence River 10 miles north-east of Point

Caribou. It has a lighthouse on the island, besides 1 Roman Catholic chapel and post office. Pop., 6.

**ISLE AUX POMMES**, an island in the River St. Lawrence, off Green Island, Que.

**ISLE AUX REAUX**, an island in the St. Lawrence, off the north-east end of the Island of Orleans, Que., below Quebec city. It is about 1½ miles long by 8 arpents broad.

**ISLE AUX TETES**, or **ASH ISLAND**, an island in the Richelieu River, Que., near the mouth of the Lacolle. This little spot and a flotilla moored between it and Lacolle, in 1814, formed the advance naval position towards Lake Champlain. On it is a redoubt commanding the whole breadth of the Richelieu.

**ISLE BELLEVERIVE**, the largest islet in the mouth of the St. Maurice, Que., below Lake St. Peter, in the River St. Lawrence.

**ISLE BIZARD**, a post office in Jacques Cartier co., Que., 5 miles from Pointe Claire, on G.T.R.

**ISLE BOUQUET**, an island in the River St. Lawrence, opposite Laprairie, Que., above Montreal.

**ISLE BRULÉE**, an island in the St. Lawrence River, nearly opposite the mouth of the Kamouraska River, Que. It is one of the Kamouraska group.

**ISLE CADIEUX**, a station on the C.P.R., Ottawa short line, in Vaudreuil co., Que., 3 miles from Vaudreuil, 27 miles north-west of Montreal.

**ISLE CARILLON**, an island in the Ottawa River, at the entrance of the Lake of Two Mountains, Que. See Isle aux Chats.

**ISLE DES CHENES**, a post village in Provencher co., Man., on Isle des Chenes Coulee, 8 miles from Grande Pointe Station, on the Winnipeg & Emerson div. of the C.P.R., 11 miles south of Winnipeg city. It has 1 Roman Catholic church, 1 store and 1 cheese factory. Pop. about 500.

**ISLE DUPAS**, a post office in Berthier co., Que., 1 mile from Berthier, on the C.P.R.

**ISLE DU PORTAGE**, a small island at the north-east end of the island of Montreal, below Ste. Therese.

**ISLE GROSBOIS**, an island in the River St. Lawrence, Que., 5 miles below Montreal. A favorite summer resort for picnic parties.

**ISLE MADAME**, an island in the St. Lawrence River, off the north-east point of the Island of Montreal. It is 1¼ miles long by ½ a mile broad.

**ISLE MORAN**, an island on the south side of Lake St. Peter (St. Lawrence River), at the mouth of the Nicolet River, Que., which it divides into two branches. It lies off the boundary between Yamaska and Nicolet co's.

**ISLE OF COVES**, an island in Lake Huron, at the entrance of the Georgian Bay, Ont.

**ISLE OF SKYE**, a post office in Huntingdon co., Que., near Ste. Agnes de Dundee, on the G.T.R. (Massena Springs branch), 5 miles from Fort Covington.

**ISLE PERROT**, a post office in Vaudreuil co., Que., 3 miles from Ste. Anne de Bellevue, a station on the short line Montreal & Ottawa div. of the C.P.R., 21 miles west of Montreal.

**ISLE PERROT, NORD**, a post office in Vaudreuil co., Que., 2 miles from Ste. Anne de Bellevue, on the C.P.R. and G.T.R., 21 miles west of Montreal.

**ISLE ST. BERNARD**, or **NUN'S ISLAND**, Que., an island at the mouth of the River Chateauguay in the St. Lawrence. It is about

a mile in extent, and is very well cultivated. **ISLE ST. IGNACE**, in Thunder Bay dist., N.W. Ont., adjoining Nipigon Bay, at the head of Lake Superior.

**ISLE ST. JOSEPH**, an island in the St. Lawrence, opposite Boucherville, Chambly co., Que. It is a favorite resort for picnickers.

**ISLE ST. JOSEPH**, an island in the River St. Francis, near its mouth, in Lake St. Peter (St. Lawrence River), Que.

**ISLE ST. PAUL**, an island in the St. Lawrence, a little above the Victoria bridge, Montreal, Que.

**ISLE STE. THERESE**, an island in the St. Lawrence River, at the foot of the island of Montreal, Que.

**ISLE VALEN**, a small fishing settlement in Placentia and St. Mary's dist., Newfoundland. It lies in Placentia Bay, between Paradise peninsula and Merasheen Island. Pop. (1901), 172.

**ISLE VAUDREUIL**, an island at the outlet of the Lake of Two Mountains, Que., River Ottawa.

**ISLE VERTE**, a post office in Temiscouata co., Que., a station on the I.C.R., 11 miles east of Cacoua, on the St. Lawrence.

**ISLES**, a lake in Champlain co., Que.

**ISLES AUX BASQUES**, small islands in the St. Lawrence, off the mouth of the River Trois Pistoles, Temiscouata co., Que.

**ISLES, LITTLE LAKE DES**, a lake in Portneuf co., Que., in the township of Gosford, on the borders of Champlain co.

**ISLETS CARIBOU**, a fishing settlement in Saguenay co., Que., on the north shore of the St. Lawrence, 9 miles north of Trinity Bay. It has 1 Roman Catholic church, school, store, post and telegraph offices. Pop., 72.

**ISLINGTON**, a post village in York co., Ont. on the C.P.R. It contains Methodist, Anglican and Baptist churches, 3 stores, 1 hotel, 1 branch bank, express office, lumber and coal yards. Pop., 400.

**ISLOTS**, a lake in Chicoutimi co., Que.

**ITALY CROSS**, a post village in Lunenburg co., N.S., 9 miles from Bridgewater, on the Halifax and South-Western Ry. It contains 2 churches (Episcopal and Methodist), 1 store, and 1 shingle and 2 saw mills. Pop., about 250.

**IVAN**, a post hamlet in Middlesex co., Ont., 3 miles from Ilderton. It contains a Presbyterian church and a blacksmith shop. Pop., 37.

**IVANHOE**, a post village in Hastings co., Ont., on the G.T.R. and C.P.R., 20 miles from Belleville. It contains a blacksmith shop, crushing mill and carriage shop. Pop., 30.

**IVERA**, a post office in Victoria co. (Cape Breton Island) N.S., 23 miles from Alba.

**IVES**, a post village in Wolfe co., Quebec, 5½ miles from Lime Ridge, on the Maine Central Ry. There is a Methodist church and saw mill in the district.

**IVRY**, a post office in Temiscouata co., Que., near Notre Dame du Lac, a station on the Temiscouata RR.

**IVRY**, a station on the C.P.R., in Terrebonne co., Que., 63 miles from Montreal and 4 miles from Ste. Agathe des Monts. The post office is called Lac Manitou.

**IVY**, a post settlement in Simcoe co., Ont., 4½ miles from Thornton, on the Hamilton & Allandale branch of G.T.R. It contains Anglican and Presbyterian churches, 1 store, 1 hotel, 1 blacksmith and wagon shop. Pop., 50.

**IVY LEA**, a country post office in Leeds co., Ont., on the St. Lawrence, 4 miles from Lans-

downe, on the Montreal & Toronto branch of G.T.R. The district contains 1 school and Methodist meeting house, 2 cheese factories, the far-famed group of islands called "Fidler's Elbow" can be seen from this place.

IWASHEGA, or TWASHEGA, a river of Quebec, runs from the north-west into the Ashuapmouichouan, in Chicoutimi co.

JACK FISH, a post settlement in Thunder Bay dist., N.W. Ont., and a station on the C.P.R. It is a port on the north shore of Lake Superior. It contains 1 store, express and telegraph offices. Pop., 100.

JACK FISH LAKE, a post office in the Prov. of Saskatchewan, near Saskatoon, on the Regina branch of the C.N.R.

JACK GALE'S HARBOR, a small fishing settlement in the dist. of Burgeo and La Poile, Nfld., 2½ miles from Channel (Port aux Basques). Pop. (1901), 7.

JACK OF CLUBS LAKE, in the Cariboo dist., B.C., 275 miles from Ashcroft Station on the C.P.R. The lake measures about 2½ miles by ¼ mile. There are numerous quartz ledges in the vicinity. This lake is supposed to be a portion of the bed of the famous William's Creek, from which a quantity of gold was produced in the "Sixties." There is a saw mill in the district, and a telegraph office at Barkerville, 5 miles distant. One family of 5 people resides here.

JACK PINE, a settlement in Rainy River district, Ont., and a station on the C.P.R. (called Pine). 35 miles east of Kenora.

JACK'S BEACH, a settlement in Placentia Bay, Nfld., on Sandy Harbor River. 30 miles from Placentia station on the Reid Nfld. RR., 81 miles south west of St. John's. It has 1 Episcopal church, school, and 22 lobster canning factories. Cod, salmon, herring and lobster catching are the chief industries of the place. Pop., about 250.

JACK'S LAKE, a post settlement in Simcoe co., Ont., 7 miles from Stayner, on the G.T.R. It contains 2 churches (Mennonite and Methodist.)

JACKMAN'S SOUND, a harbor in Frobisher Bay, Baffin Land, Franklin dist., N.E.T., opposite Sussex Island.

JACKSON, a country post office in Grey co., Ont., 6 miles from Owen Sound, containing 1 store, 1 blacksmith shop and 2 churches 2 miles away. Pop. 43.

JACKSON, a post office in Cumberland co., N.S., 6½ miles from Thomson, a station on the I.C.R., 4 miles from Oxford Jct.

JACKSON POINT, a post settlement and summer resort in York co., Ont., on Lake Simcoe and on the G.T.R. (Midland division), 1 mile from Sutton West, the nearest post office, and 50 miles from Toronto. There is good fishing in the vicinity, much patronised during summer by tourists. It contains a store and telephone office.

JACKSON'S ARM, a small fishing station on the north side of White Bay, Nfld., 60 miles from Howley's, on the Reid-Nfld. Ry. It contains an Anglican school chapel. Pop., 87.

JACKSON'S COVE, a farming and fishing settlement in the district of Twillingate, Nfld., on Green Bay, 19 miles from Tilt Cove, 60 miles from Millerton on the Reid-Nfld. Ry. It contains 2 Methodist churches and Salvation Army barracks, 2 stores, and has a weekly mail. Pop. (1901), 106.

JACKSON'S ROAD, Kings co., N.S. See Nichollsville.

JACKSONTOWN, a post settlement in Carleton co., N.B., 6 miles from Hartland and 8 miles from Woodstock, on the C.P.R. It contains 1 Baptist church and 2 schools. Pop., 100.

JACKSONVILLE, a settlement in Cape Breton co., N.S., on a branch of the Harbor of North Sydney, 3 miles from North Sydney, and 2½ miles from Leitch's Creek, on the Halifax & Moncton branch of the I.C.R. Pop., about 125.

JACKSONVILLE, a post settlement in Carleton co., N.B., 4½ miles from Woodstock Station, on the C.P.R. It contains 4 churches (Baptist, Methodist, Adventist and Anglican), 1 general store, 1 blacksmith shop, telephone office and school. Pop., 200.

JACKVILLE, a post office in Calgary dist., Prov. of Alberta, near Carstairs, on the Calgary & Edmonton div. of the C.P.R., 41 miles north of Calgary.

JACOB, a lake in Charlevoix co., Que., in the township of Chauveau.

JACQUES CARTIER, a county of Quebec, on the Island of Montreal, bounded on the south by the River St. Lawrence and on the west and north by the River Ottawa. Area, 73,803 acres. It is traversed by the G.T.R. Chief town, Point Claire. Pop. of co. (1901), 26,168.

JACQUES FONTAINE, a small fishing settlement in the district of Fortune Bay, Nfld., 46 miles from Burin. Pop. (1901), 80.

JACQUET RIVER, a post village in Restigouche co., N.B., on the Bay Chaleur, and a station on the International RR., 26 miles south east of Dalhousie Jct. It has 2 churches (Roman Catholic and Presbyterian), 5 stores, 2 hotels, 2 mills, 1 sash and door factory, besides express and telegraph offices. Pop., about 500.

JACQUET RIVER, a salmon and trout stream in Restigouche co., N.B., running into the Bale des Chaleurs, west of Bathurst. It is 50 miles long, abounds in lumber, and has a very good harbor at its mouth.

JAFFA, a post village in Elgin co., Ont., 5½ miles from Aylmer Station on the G.T.R., 10 miles from St. Thomas. It has 2 churches (Methodist and Baptist), 3 saw mills. Pop., about 100.

JAFFRAY, a post office in Kootenay dist., B.C., and a station on the Crows Nest Pass section of the C.P.R., 13 miles north-west of Elk.

JAILLETVILLE, a small coal mining settlement in Kent co., N.B., on the Richibouctou River, 4 miles from Beersville, on the I.C.R. (Coal Branch station), 27 miles from Moncton. Farming and coal mining are the chief industries in the region. There is 1 general store in the village; post, telegraph and express offices at Coal Branch station. Pop., 70.

JAMES BAY JUNCTION, a station in Parry Sound dist., Ont., on the Ottawa & Parry Sound div. of the G.T.R., where the line branches off to Parry Sound village and to Depot Harbor, on the Georgian Bay. It is a post office.

JAMES' COVE, a settlement in the dist. of Harbor Main, Nfld., and a port of call of the Reid-Nfld. steamers. Pop. (1901), 132.

JAMES RIVER, a post village in Antigonish co., N.S., and a station on the I.C.R., on the James River, 10 miles west of Antigonish. It